
Committee Agenda   
 

1 

 
 
Area Planning Subcommittee West 
Wednesday, 20th May, 2009 
 
Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
  
Room: Council Chamber  
  
Time: 7.30 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer 

Adrian Hendry - The Office of the Chief Executive 
Email: ahendry@eppingforestdc.gov.uk Tel: 01992 564246 

 
 
Members: 
 
Councillors J Wyatt (Chairman), Mrs P Brooks (Vice-Chairman), R Bassett, J Collier, 
Mrs A Cooper, Mrs R Gadsby, Mrs J Lea, W Pryor, Mrs M Sartin, Mrs P Smith, 
Ms S Stavrou, A Watts and Mrs E Webster 
 
 
 
 

A BRIEFING FOR THE CHAIRMAN, VICE-CHAIRMAN AND 
APPOINTED SPOKESPERSONS WILL BE HELD AT 6.30 P.M. IN 
COMMITTEE ROOM 1 ON THE DAY OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE. 

 
 
WEBCASTING NOTICE 
 
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is being filmed.  
 
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection 
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the 
Council’s published policy and copies made available to those that request it. 
 
Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the lower public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of the public do not 
wish to have their image captured they should sit in the upper council chamber public 
gallery area 
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Senior Democratic Services 
Officer on 01992 564249. 
 



Area Planning Subcommittee West Wednesday, 20 May 2009 
 

2 

 1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION   
 

  1. This meeting is to be webcast. Members are reminded of the need to activate 
their microphones before speaking.  
 
2. The Chairman will read the following announcement: 
 
“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the 
Internet and will be capable of repeated viewing and copies of the recording could be 
made available for those that request it. 
 
If you are seated in the lower public seating area it is likely that the recording cameras 
will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will 
become part of the broadcast. 
 
This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you wish to avoid this 
you should move to the upper public gallery” 
 

 2. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING 
SUBCOMMITTEES  (Pages 5 - 6) 

 
  General advice to people attending the meeting is attached together with a plan 

showing the location of the meeting. 
 

 3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  (Assistant to the Chief Executive) To declare interests in any item on this agenda. 
 

 5. MINUTES  (Pages 7 - 12) 
 

  To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 29 April 
2009 as correct record (attached). 
 

 6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS   
 

  Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs 6 and 
25 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the 
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, 
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda 
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted. 
 
In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item 
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee 
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee.  Two weeks' notice of non-urgent 
items is required. 
 

 7. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  (Pages 13 - 30) 
 

  (Director of Planning and Economic Development)  To consider planning applications 
as set out in the attached schedule 
 
Background Papers:  (i)  Applications for determination – applications listed on the 
schedule, letters of representation received regarding the applications which are 



Area Planning Subcommittee West Wednesday, 20 May 2009 
 

3 

summarised on the schedule.  (ii)  Enforcement of Planning Control – the reports of 
officers inspecting the properties listed on the schedule in respect of which 
consideration is to be given to the enforcement of planning control. 
 

 8. PROBITY IN PLANNING – APPEAL DECISIONS, OCTOBER 2008 TO MARCH 
2009  (Pages 31 - 38) 

 
  To consider the attached report. 

 
 9. DELEGATED DECISIONS   

 
  (Director of Planning and Economic Development) Schedules of planning applications 

determined by the Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated 
powers since the last meeting of a Plans Subcommittee may be inspected in the 
Members Room or at the Planning and Economic Development Information Desk at 
the Civic Offices, Epping. 
 

 10. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 

  Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of 
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2): 
 

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number 

Nil Nil Nil 
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Confidential Items Commencement: Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules 
contained in the Constitution require: 
 
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 
 
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press. 

 
(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 

completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision. 

 
Background Papers:  Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of 
the Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject 
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 



Area Planning Subcommittee West Wednesday, 20 May 2009 
 

4 

(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 
report is based;  and 

 
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 

 
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 

 
 



Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees 
 
Are the meetings open to the public? 
 
Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are 
the public excluded. 
 
When and where is the meeting? 
 
Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front 
page of the agenda along with the details of the contact officer and members of the 
Subcommittee.  
 
Can I speak? 
 
If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on 
the day before the meeting. Ring the number shown on the top of the front page of 
the agenda. Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak, you must 
register with Democratic Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning 
Enforcement or legal issues. 
 
Who can speak? 
 
Three classes of speakers are allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), 
the local Parish or Town Council and the Applicant or his/her agent.  
 
Sometimes members of the Council who have a prejudicial interest and would 
normally withdraw from the meeting might opt to exercise their right to address the 
meeting on an item and then withdraw.  
 
Such members are required to speak from the public seating area and address the 
Sub-Committee before leaving. 
 
What can I say? 
 
You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind 
that you are limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers 
may clarify matters relating to their presentation and answer questions from Sub-
Committee members.  
 
If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Subcommittee will 
determine the application in your absence. 
 
Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my 
objection? 
 
Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send 
further information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through 
Democratic Services or our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information 
sent to Councillors should be copied to the Planning Officer dealing with your 
application. 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 5



How are the applications considered? 
 
The Subcommittee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they 
will listen to an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear 
any speakers’ presentations.  
 
The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) 
Applicant or his/her agent. The Subcommittee will then debate the application and 
vote on either the recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by 
the Subcommittee. Should the Subcommittee propose to follow a course of action 
different to officer recommendation, they are required to give their reasons for doing 
so. 
 
The Subcommittee cannot grant any application, which is contrary to Local or 
Structure Plan Policy. In this case the application would stand referred to the next 
meeting of the District Development Control Committee. 
 
Further Information? 
 
Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet ‘Your Choice, Your 
Voice’ 
 

Page 6



1

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Committee: Area Planning Subcommittee West Date: Wednesday, 29 April 2009 
   

Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, 
High Street, Epping 

Time: 7.30 - 8.20 pm 

Members
Present:

J Wyatt (Chairman), J Collier, Mrs A Cooper, Mrs R Gadsby, Mrs M Sartin, 
Mrs P Smith, Ms S Stavrou, A Watts and Mrs E Webster 

Other
Councillors:

Apologies: Mrs P Brooks, R Bassett, Mrs J Lea and W Pryor 

Officers
Present:

J Shingler (Senior Planning Officer), M Jenkins (Democratic Services 
Assistant) and R Perrin (Democratic Services Assistant) 

44. Webcasting Introduction

The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be 
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the 
webcasting of its meetings. The Sub-Committee noted the Council’s Protocol for 
Webcasting of Council and Other Meetings. 

45. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION  

The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the 
procedures and arrangements agreed by the Council, to enable persons to address 
the Sub-Committee in relation to the determination of applications for planning 
permission. 

46. Minutes

 RESOLVED: 

That the minutes of the meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 8 April 2009 be 
taken as read and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.  

47. Declarations of Interest

(a) Pursuant to the Council's Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Ms S Stavrou 
declared a personal and prejudicial interest in the following item of the agenda by 
virtue of being a friend of the family of the owners of the site in question, who had 
used her livery yard for a number of years. Councillor Ms S Stavrou made this 
declaration before the commencement of consideration of the item as she had only 
become aware of the name of the applicant and the consequent prejudicial interest at 
that stage of the meeting. The Councillor had determined that she would leave the 
meeting for the duration of the discussion on the item and voting thereon: 

• EPF/0513/09 Home Farm, Little Copped Hall, Copped Hall Estate High Road, 
Epping, Essex CM16 5HS 

Agenda Item 5

Page 7



Area Planning Subcommittee West  Wednesday, 29 April 2009 

2

48. Any Other Business  

It was reported that there was no urgent business for consideration at the meeting. 

49. Development Control  

The Sub-Committee considered a schedule of applications for planning permission. 

RESOLVED: 

 That, Planning applications numbered 1 - 3 be determined as set out in the 
annex to these minutes. 

50. Delegated Decisions

The Sub-Committee noted that details of planning applications determined by the 
Head of Planning Economic Development under delegated authority since the last 
meeting had been circulated to all members and were available for inspection at the 
Civic Offices. 

CHAIRMAN

Page 8



Report Item No: 1 

APPLICATION No: EPF/2315/08

SITE ADDRESS: 5 Moores Estate 
Church Lane
Roydon
Harlow
Essex 
CM19 5HF 

PARISH: Roydon

WARD: Roydon

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Four additional gypsy pitches for family members’ residential 
caravan site (making 5 in total). 

DECISION: Deferred

This application was referred directly to the District Development Control Committee with no 
discussion and no recommendation on the basis that the proposal is of major importance and is 
affected by the current consultation process for the Gypsy and Traveller DPD. 
.

Minute Item 49

Page 3Page 9



Report Item No: 2

APPLICATION No: EPF/0513/09

SITE ADDRESS: Home Farm  
Little Copped Hall 
Copped Hall Estate High Road 
Epping
Essex 
CM16 5HS 

PARISH: Epping Upland 

WARD: Broadley Common, Epping Upland and Nazeing 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Conversion and extension of former hay loft into a single, 
three bedroom dwelling. (Revised application) 

DECISION: Deferred

The Committee’s attention was drawn to letters of objection received from the Epping Society and 
The City of London. 

The Committee resolved to defer a decision until such time as a Conservation Area Appraisal is in 
place and for the proposal to come back to this Committee at that time. 

Page 4Page 10



Report Item No: 3

APPLICATION No: EPF/0232/09

SITE ADDRESS: Willowcroft
Sewardstone Road 
Waltham Abbey 
Essex 
E4 7RF 

PARISH: Waltham Abbey 

WARD: Waltham Abbey High Beach 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Amendment to EPF/0032/08 (2 storey side and rear extension 
with front and rear dormer windows) to allow use of approved 
carport/garage area as habitable room. 

DECISION: Granted Permission (With Conditions) 

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed extension, shall match 
those of the existing building. 

Page 5Page 11



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE ‘WEST’ 

Date 20 May 2009 

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS 

 
 

ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION 
OFFICER 
RECOMMENDATION 

PAGE

1. EPF/0513/09 
Home Farm, Little Copped all, 
Copped Hall Estate, High Road, 
Epping CM16 5HS 

GRANT 15 

2. EPF/0555/09 6 Forest Close, Waltham Abbey 
EN9 3QR 

REFUSE 25 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0513/09 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Home Farm  

Little Copped Hall 
Copped Hall Estate High Road 
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 5HS 
 

PARISH: Epping Upland 
 

WARD: Broadley Common, Epping Upland and Nazeing 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Vincent Dolan  
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Conversion and extension of former hay loft into a single, 
three bedroom dwelling. (Revised application) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of 
Part 1, Classes A, B, C, D and E shall be undertaken without the prior written 
permission of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

3 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for 
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the 
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such 
approved details. 
 

4 No development shall take place until the applicant has secured the implementation 
of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of 
investigation which has been submitted by the applicant and approved by the 
Planning Authority. 
 

 
 
 
And subject to the applicant entering into a legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act, within 12 months of this decision, to secure the removal of the 
half of the adjacent agricultural building closest to the site, and removal of all resultant 
materials from the land, prior to the first occupation of converted stable building for 
residential purposes. 
 

Page 15



This application was discussed at the last West Area Committee at which members voted to defer 
making a decision until such time as a Conservation Area Character Appraisal is in place.  
However, concern has been raised about the deferral on two counts 
 
1. Concern was raised by Members of the Committee that this decision was made without proper 
discussion of the motion to defer, and; 
2. Officers sought legal advice as to the implications of deferring decision on a planning application 
to allow time for a Character Appraisal to be put in place. 
 
With regard to the first issue, it has been confirmed that when a motion is raised and seconded it is 
entirely in order for further discussion of the motion and its implications to be discussed before a 
vote is taken, this did not happen at the meeting despite Members indicating that they wished to 
speak. Therefore in order to allow proper debate the matter has been brought back to Committee 
to allow for that discussion, if appropriate, to take place. 
 
On the second issue, legal advice has been given that to defer the application until such time as a 
Conservation Area Character Appraisal is in place, would leave the Council open to significant 
criticism and risk of a costs against the Council should there be an appeal against non 
determination of the application.  The Character Appraisal is not imminent, is not required to be in 
place before applications are determined and is outside the control of the applicant.  Members 
should be aware that they have recently determined similar applications in this Conservation Area, 
and the circumstances have not changed. 
 
Therefore the application is brought before members again tonight for further consideration and 
the original Officer’s report is reproduced at the end of this report.  However it was clear at the last 
committee that some additional background information is required to enable Members to fully 
assess the proposal and the issues involved in the determination of the application and the 
following report seeks to address the main concerns raised in the discussion at that meeting. 
 
Conservation Area Character Appraisals 
 
A conservation area character appraisal looks in detail at a conservation area and aims to define 
what its most important characteristics and features are. It also highlights any parts of the 
conservation area that may be in need of improvement.  It does not set out Planning Policies for 
the area, but is a useful tool for guiding change in a conservation area. 
 
A character appraisal and management plan can play an important role in ensuring that the 
aspirations of the plan can be taken into consideration when development issues are being 
considered and for developing initiatives to improve the area.  Appraisals however, have a much 
wider application as educational and informative documents for the local community. 
 
At present however, of the 25 Conservation Areas in the District only a few have such appraisals 
in place, and clearly planning applications within those conservation areas without appraisals 
cannot be put on hold until such time as the appraisals are completed. 
 
With regard to the current position on the Copped Hall Conservation Area Appraisal; whilst the 
document is being produced in partnership with EFDC, the City of London and the Copped Hall 
Trust, the preliminary draft is being written by consultants sponsored by the Copped Hall Trust.  It 
is therefore difficult to give a timescale for receipt of this draft, but current indications are that it will 
be with us by the end of June.  After which time the draft will need to go out to public consultation 
for several weeks so that the views of local residents and businesses can be incorporated into the 
final version. The document has to be approved by the Portfolio Holder before going to print.  
Realistically it is unlikely that the document will be in print until much later in the year.  The 
document could then be considered for adoption as a Supplementary Planning Document at some 

Page 16



point in the future; it is only at that point that it would carry any significant weight in the 
determination of planning applications.  
 
Relevant History 
 
In 2006 a planning application (EPF/1084/06) was submitted for conversion and extension of the 
building currently the subject of this application to one dwelling, erection of two additional dwellings 
on the site of the agricultural building to the rear and conversion of The Dairy building to the rear to 
a further dwelling.  This proposal was clearly contrary to current Green Belt Policy as it included 
not only conversion of existing buildings but also a large extension and the erection of two new 
dwellings.  However as part of the application the then applicant Mr Fletcher, who was the owner 
of a significant area of land around the site, put together a package of enhancements to the area, 
including the transfer of land to the Copped Hall Trust and to the Conservators of Epping Forest.  It 
was considered that this package, to be secured by a Legal agreement under section 106 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act was sufficient to outweigh the harm to the Green Belt from 
inappropriate development and Members therefore agreed to grant consent provided the legal 
agreement was signed. 
 
The land ownership then changed and the legal agreement was never signed, so planning 
permission has never been issued for that development. 
 
Since then, The Dairy has been the subject of a separate planning application for conversion to a 
single dwelling, EPF/2451/07 which was approved subject to conditions, and the works have taken 
place.   The 2006 application (EPF/1084/06) has therefore now been taken over by events and is 
no longer a proposition.  The original applicant no longer has an interest in pursuing that scheme. 
 
A building to the North of The Dairy, known as the Annex to the Dairy has planning permission for 
change of use to one dwelling (EPF/1871/08) 
 
The building immediately adjacent to the current application building has planning permission for 
change of use to a dwelling, approved by Committee last month (EPF/2431/08). 
 
An application for redevelopment of the model farm site for 8 dwellings (EPF/1607/08) was 
submitted last year but was withdrawn by the applicant before it could be determined. 
 
There is a current application under consideration for extension and conversion of the hay loft 
building (the site the subject of this report) to a single dwelling.  EPF/0689/09 received 20/4/09 
which can not yet be determined as the consultation period has not expired.   
 
 
Land Ownership   
 
Land ownership was mentioned in the Officer’s report to committee and was discussed at some 
length at the last planning meeting.  Normally ownership of land is not a material consideration in 
the determination of a planning application.  However, for the now defunct 2006 scheme it was 
relevant because the applicant was offering land to the Copped Hall Trust and to Epping Forest as 
part of a package of improvements needed to warrant a departure from normal planning 
restrictions on development of new buildings in the Green Belt.   
 
The land that was at that time in Mr Fletcher’s ownership has now been split into two parcels, one 
owned by Mr Paul Magris and the other jointly owned by Mr Paul Magris and Mr Peter Magris.  
The current application site, which is very small in area, is in the ownership of both brothers.  
However, the applicant is a Mr V Dolan, who does not own any of the land. 
 

Page 17



Planning applications can be submitted on land not within the applicant’s ownership, provided the 
owner has been notified that the application has been made. 
 
Given that the scheme currently under consideration does not include new building (apart from a 
very modest side extension), as discussed in the Officer’s report the proposal for conversion is in 
accordance with the adopted policies of the Local Plan and Local Plan Alterations and there is 
therefore no requirement for any 106 agreement with the scheme, other than that required to 
secure the removal of the existing agricultural building to the rear of the application building which 
is not in the ownership of the applicant. 
 
The Model Farm 
 
Mention has been made of “the Model Farm, that at one time existed on the site of the 2006 
application, this was an historic farm that included the building the subject of this application, the 
dairy, and the adjacent stable building, and other farm buildings in the position of the current 
modern farm building which it is proposed to remove. The model farm does not currently exist and 
none of the remaining buildings on the site are listed. 
 
Copped Hall and its Parkland 
 
Copped Hall is a Grade II listed mansion dating from the 18th century.  It was left in a very poor 
state of repair and was saved, and is gradually being restored by the Copped Hall Trust who 
bought the property in 1995. Its surrounding parkland, that lies to the west and south of the Hall, is 
included on the Register of Historic Parks and Gardens as Grade II* Listed, and dates back even 
further.  The application site is not within the listed parkland area, although the land that was to be 
transferred in the 2006 proposed legal agreement was within the listed parkland area and it is for 
this reason that the transference of the land was regarded as very special circumstances as it 
would have returned the parkland to the same ownership as the Hall and helped to restore the 
important parkland area back to its former glory.  
 
Piecemeal Development 
 
Whilst the gradual conversion of the existing buildings around the original model farm site can be 
regarded as piecemeal development, the fact remains that each planning application must be 
determined on its individual merits.  Whilst officers have sympathy with the long term aims of the 
Copped Hall Trust, to protect and maintain the parkland area as well as the hall itself the fact 
remains that the current application site is not within the Historic Parkland nor is it within the area 
identified in the Local Plan Policy HC14 which seeks to encourage the restoration and reuse of 
Copped Hall and its outbuildings.  As such it must be determined on the basis of the currently 
adopted policies of the Local Plan. 
 
Representations 
 
Since the completion of the original report the following representations have been received: 
PARISH COUNCIL- No Objection 
CITY OF LONDON, CONSERVATORS OF EPPING FOREST – Believe that a comprehensive 
plan is needed, piecemeal development of part of the Historic Model Farm within the Conservation 
Area is in conflict with HC6 and HC14 of the Local Plan. 
EPPING SOCIETY- Object.  The previous owner agreed a comprehensive development which 
allowed key parts of the Conservation Area to be given to the Forest and the Copped Hall Trust , 
This scheme and others on the site seek to ignore this community gain.  It is therefore piecemeal 
development of no benefit to the conservation area or the public. 
6 KENDAL AVENUE- The council is not doing enough to resurrect the solution from 2006.  Council 
should reject the piecemeal approach. 

Page 18



21 BARNFIELD – Object. Piecemeal development, all proposals coming forward should be 
considered together. 
   
 
The original report to Committee is attached below and the officer’s recommendation remains the 
same. 
 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
The applicant is seeking planning permission for the conversion of a former hay loft into a three 
bedroom dwelling. 
 
The existing building is double storey, constructed from brick and has a tiled roof. As a result of the 
conversion, minor external alterations are required such as inserting velux roof lights to the side 
elevations, construct a small ground floor side extension and replace the existing doors to the front 
elevation with glazing and a new front entrance.  
 
The dwelling is to comprise of a kitchen, living/dining area and W/C on the ground floor and 3 
bedrooms (2 with en-suites) and a landing area on the first floor. 
 
Two vehicle spaces are to be provided on a designated hard standing area to the north of the 
existing building. Approximately 80 square metres of private open space for future residents is to 
be provided to the side and front of the dwelling and will be screened by a timber close boarded 
fence.  
 
Description of Site: 
 
The subject site is part of the Copped Hall Estate which was an old hunting park dating back to the 
12th century and comprises the remains of the 18th century mansion. The site itself is located 
approximately 2.7 miles east of Epping. Access to it is via a private road that runs off Epping High 
Road.  
 
Home Farm historically produced livestock, fruit and vegetables for the mansion but is now 
currently unused. Little Copped Hall, a double storey detached dwelling which was used as the 
farm house, is located to the west.  There is a large modern agricultural building immediately 
abutting the rear of the stable block.  
 
The subject site and the surrounding area are located within the Metropolitan Green Belt and the 
Copped Hall Conservation Area.  
 
Relevant History: 
 
There have been a number of recent planning applications relating to adjacent sites within the 
Copped Hall estate, the most relevant of which are:- 
 
EPF/1084/06 – Part conversion and part replacement of redundant farm buildings to form four 
dwellings together with preservation and enhancement of Grade II* registered parkland (Revised 
application) (approved subject to Section 106 agreement).  This scheme included the current 
application site and the adjacent farm building. 
 
EPF/1637/07 – Conversion of dairy into 4 bedroom dwelling with extension to rear and porch to 
front (refused) 
 

Page 19



EPF/2134/07 – Conversion of dairy into 4 bedroom dwelling with extension to rear and detached 
double garage (refused) 
 
EPF2451/07 - Conversion of dairy into 4 bedroom dwelling with extension to rear (approved 
subject to conditions) 
 
EPF/2453/07 - Conservation area consent for the removal of half of an agricultural building 
(approved with conditions, but not yet implemented) 
 
EPF/0817/08 – Conversion of agricultural building to single, two bedroom dwelling with garage 
(refused) 
 
EPF/1227/08 – Conversion of former stable block into single 3 bed dwelling (refused) 
 
EPF/1880/08 - Conservation area consent for the removal of remainder of agricultural building. 
(approved) 
 
EPF/2431/08 - Conversion of former stable block into a single, three bedroom, dwelling with 
garage. (Approved subject to 106 agreement) 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
DBE1 Design of new buildings 
DBE2 Effect on neighbouring properties 
DEB4 Design in the Green Belt 
DBE6 Car parking in new development 
DBE8 Private amenity space 
DBE9 Loss of amenity 
LL2 Development and rural landscape 
LL10 Impact on existing landscaping 
LL11 Landscaping provisions 
HC7 Development within Conservation Areas 
HC12 Development affecting the setting of a Listed Building 
HC14 Copped Hall, Epping 
CP3 New Development 
CP4 Sustainable Development 
GB2A Development in Green Belt 
GB4A Extensions to Residential Curtilages 
GB8A Change of Use or Adaptation of Buildings 
GB9A Residential Conversions 
RP5A Adverse environmental impacts 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS 
 
EPPING UPLAND PARISH COUNCIL: No comment received at time of writing report. 
 
NEIGHBOURS:  No responses received at time of writing report. 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The application is for the conversion of the disused hayloft building into a three bedroom dwelling. 
The site is located within the Metropolitan Green Belt and the Copped Hall Conservation Area and 
therefore the main issues to be addressed are whether the design and appearance of the 
development are acceptable, whether there would be a harmful impact to the openness of the 

Page 20



Green Belt, whether there would be a harmful impact to the Copped Hall Conservation area and 
whether there would be any impacts to the amenities of adjoining properties.  
 
Green Belt: 
 
Policy GB8A states that Council will grant planning permission for the change of use of a building 
in the Green Belt provided the building is permanent and of substantial construction, capable of 
conversion without major changes and that the use would not have a greater impact than the 
present use. 
 
Policy GB9A states that residential conversion of rural buildings must not require such changes to 
buildings that their surroundings, external appearance, character and fabric could be 
unsympathetically or adversely affected.  
 
A small ground floor extension of approximately 8 square metres is to be constructed on the 
southern side elevation of the building. It is considered that an extension of this size and scale 
would not result in a detrimental impact to the character, openness and appearance of the Green 
Belt.  
 
The proposed changes to the external appearance of the building would not be unsympathetic or 
adversely affect the openness of the Green Belt. The building is of a substantial construction which 
is capable of being converted without any major changes. 
 
On the location and site plan submitted as part of this application the dotted red line has indicated 
the size and the location of the proposed curtilage. It is considered that the proposed size of the 
curtilage is acceptable in that it will not be harmful to the openness of, and the objectives of 
including land within the Metropolitan Green Belt. 
 
It is considered that this location is unsuitable for business or storage uses, which would generate 
inappropriate traffic. 
 
Design and the Historic Environment: 
 
Policies DBE1, DBE2 and DBE4 of the Epping Forest District Local Plan seeks to ensure that new 
development is satisfactorily located and is of a high standard of design and layout. Furthermore, 
the appearance of new developments should be compatible with the character of the surrounding 
area, and would not prejudice the environment of occupiers of adjoining properties.  
 
The proposal entails only minor alterations to the existing building which includes the small ground 
floor extension. Building materials are a key factor in determining the local character. It is 
important that the detailing of the building is of a high standard to replicate the surrounding area in 
terms of detailing. It is considered that the proposed materials and the alterations made to the 
building are acceptable in that they would not cause material harm to the character of the area.  
 
It should be noted that it is considered that the size, scale and bulk of the proposed extension and 
conversion would be acceptable.  
 
Considering the low amount of vehicle movements to and from the site, it is not considered that 
there would be a detrimental impact to the safety of entering and exiting the site or affecting the 
traffic movements along the road.  
 
Adequate car parking to service the needs of the residents would be available on the hard surface 
towards the side of the dwelling.  
 

Page 21



It is considered that the amount of private open space provided is acceptable in size and although 
its position to the front of the building is not ideal as it results in prominent fencing and some lack 
of privacy, is not considered that this is sufficient to warrant refusal of this application and in any 
conversion there is often a need to compromise. 
 
However there is concern regarding the siting of a converted dwelling being located so close to a 
large agricultural building. The proposed dwelling would not provide adequate amenities to future 
occupiers nor result in an acceptable setting in view of the large, redundant agricultural building 
immediately behind the building.  
 
The agricultural building, although currently disused could be utilised for any agricultural purpose 
in the future and this would lead to unacceptable noise, disturbance and possible smell, flies etc. 
which would clearly be harmful to the residential amenities of future occupants. 
 
The application drawings show this building to be removed, but it is not within the applicant’s 
ownership or control, therefore it is considered necessary for the applicant to enter into a legal 
agreement under section 106 to ensure that the half of the building closest to the development be 
removed prior to the first use of the hayloft building as a dwelling.   
 
The previous application for this development, EPF/1303/08, was refused for two reasons, one 
was that it would provide unsatisfactory living conditions due to the proximity to the agricultural 
building and clearly this reason is overcome by the proposed 106 agreement. 
 
The second reason for refusal was “The proposal constitutes an unsatisfactory piecemeal 
development of part of the Historical Model Farm within the Conservation Area.  The Council 
considers that a comprehensive scheme for the whole of the site is required in order to maintain 
and preserve the character of the Conservation Area.” 
 
The current application still represents piecemeal development of the Model Farm site which is far 
from ideal, however Officers have since had to acknowledge that the Copped Hall site has been 
split into different ownerships and each application can only be determined on its individual merits.  
Back in 2005, permission was granted for the erection of 4 dwellings on the Model Farm site, 
which was given consent subject to a wide ranging 106 agreement which included transfer of land 
to the Copped Hall Trust.  The relevant 106 agreement was never signed and the land was 
subsequently split and sold to different people.  Officers now accept that the opportunity to achieve 
additional improvements to the important Copped Hall site from the transfer of land has been lost 
and whilst this is regretted, it would not be considered reasonable grounds for refusal of this 
application which complies with the policies of the Local Plan. 
 
The proposal results in the removal of half of a large unattractive agricultural building and will 
therefore have a positive impact on the character of the Conservation Area and on the Green Belt.  
Once the building is removed further development of this site for more housing will be very difficult 
to justify. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
In conclusion, whilst the piecemeal development of the small parcels of land around the original 
Model Farm is far from ideal, the application on this site, when treated on its individual merits, 
meets the requirements of the policies of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations.  It will not cause 
harm to the openness of the Green Belt and it will, through the removal of the large agricultural 
building, enhance the character of the Conservation area.  The application is therefore 
recommended for approval subject to the suggested 106 agreement. 
 
 

Page 22



 
 
 

Page 23



 
 
123 

 
 

 
 
  

 

 
 

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee West 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

1 

Application Number: EPF/0513/09 

Site Name: Home Farm, Little Copped Hall, Copped Hall 
Estate, High Road, Epping, CM16 5HS 

Scale of Plot: 1/5000 

Page 24



Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0555/09 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 6 Forest Close 

Waltham Abbey 
Essex 
EN9 3QR 
 

PARISH: Waltham Abbey 
 

WARD: Waltham Abbey High Beach 
 

APPLICANT: Mrs L Osborne 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Two storey and single storey side and rear extension. 
(Revised application) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Refuse Permission 
 

 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 
 

1 The site is located within the Metropolitan Green Belt. The proposed development is 
at odds with Government advice as contained within PPG2, the policies of the Local 
Plan and Alterations, namely policies GB2A and GB14A, in that it does not 
constitute a reasonable extension to an existing dwelling. The application is 
unacceptable by reason of its size, design and siting which would harm the 
objectives of the Metropolitan Green Belt. Furthermore it would be dominant and 
visually intrusive in the surrounding area. 
 

 
 
 
This application is before this Committee since it has been ‘called in’ by Councillor Stavrou 
(Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule A (h) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
The applicant seeks permission to extend to the side and rear of the property over two storeys. 
The rear projection is staggered with the ground floor extending 3m in depth to the rear (3.3m 
including the eaves overhang) and the first floor extending only 2m (2.3m including the eaves 
overhang). 
 
The proposed extensions wrap around the rear and side of the existing building, with openings on 
the ground floor to the front and side, and to the rear only at first floor. The proposed extensions 
would provide for an extended lounge area, a repositioned kitchen and ground floor shower room. 
On first floor the proposals would provide extended bedroom areas, with a dressing room and 
small balcony area. 
 
This application has previously been considered by the Council and refused under delegated 
powers. 
 

Page 25



Description of Site: 
 
The application site is situated within the Metropolitan Green Belt, at the top of a small cul-de-sac 
of 10 dwellings, abutting open countryside immediately to the north of the site. Neighbouring 
properties bound the property to the south and eastern sides of the application site and to the west 
are a playground area, sub station and Pynest House.  
 
The area has a relatively urban character within the cul-de-sac, created by street lighting, footways 
and alterations to neighbouring properties. The land to the north, east and south of the site is more 
open and rural particularly to the north. The site is occupied by a two storey semi-detached 
property that has not been previously extended. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
The applicant has been previously refused permission for a similar extension under application 
EPF/0374/08. This application was refused due to the scale of the development conflicting with 
Green Belt policies, and the depth of the proposals impacting adversely on the neighbouring 
property at number 5 Forest Close. 
 
Application EPF/2210/08 was an identical scheme to the current proposal and was refused under 
delegated powers for the following reason: 

 
The site is located within the Metropolitan Green Belt. The proposed development is at 
odds with Government advice as contained within PPG2, the policies of the Local Plan and 
Alterations namely policies GB2A and GB14A in that it does not constitute a reasonable 
extension to an existing dwelling. The application is unacceptable by reason of its size, 
design and siting which would harm the objectives of the Metropolitan Green Belt. 
Furthermore it would be dominant and visually intrusive in the surrounding area. 

 
The majority of neighbouring properties appear to have been extended or altered in some manner, 
most prior to the adoption of the 1998 Local Plan or the current Local Plan and Alterations adopted 
in 2006. The Green Belt has been designated and protected in this area since prior to 1964 and 
records indicate that the neighbouring property at number 8 has been recently granted consent for 
a similar scale of extensions by Members at committee. 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations 
GB2A – Development in the Green Belt 
GB14A – Residential Extensions in the Green Belt 
DBE9 – Impact of New Development 
DBE10 – Design of Residential Extensions 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
8 properties were consulted and the following responses were received: 
 
TOWN COUNCIL:  No objection 
 
PYNEST HOUSE: Object due to size of footprint and volume which may prove a nuisance to 
neighbours. Additionally the proposals may increase parking pressures in an already restricted cul-
de-sac area. Attention is also drawn to the original construction of the cottages for agricultural 
workers by the Waltham Holy Urban District Council. 
 

Page 26



Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues that arise with this application are considered to be the appropriateness of the 
development in the Green Belt, its effect on the openness and character and its impact upon 
neighbouring properties. 
 
Green Belt 
The proposed extensions constitute more than 75sqm of additional internal floorspace (over 80% 
of the original volume of the dwelling). This is significantly beyond the 40% or 50sqm permissible 
under policy GB14A. The applicants have provided no justification for this volume, and the original 
dwelling would not appear unduly small.  For such a departure from policy to be acceptable there 
would need to be very special circumstances sufficient to outweigh the harm from inappropriate 
development.  Whilst it is accepted that the site is within a small residential enclave, it is 
considered that the scale of the addition which reduces the openness between the dwellings is 
contrary to the objectives of the Green Belt and of policies GB14A and GB2A of the adopted Local 
Plan and Alterations. 
 
Design 
The proposed extensions extend the existing ridge of the roofline and frontage of the property for 
some 3m, this results in the property appearing uncharacteristically wide compared to the attached 
property without any relief or reduction to the ridge. Whilst this is not ideal it is not considered so 
harmful to the street scene as to warrant a reason for refusal. 
 
Neighbouring Properties 
A reason for refusal of the earlier scheme (EPF/0374/08) was due to the loss of light and outlook 
to the adjacent property at number 5 Forest Close. Subsequently the applicant has sought to 
reduce the depth of the rear extension whilst increasing the depth of the side extensions further 
towards the front of the plot. The reduction in depth at the rear does address the loss of light and 
outlook that previously raised concern, however the increased depth of the side projection does 
result in the development encroaching further towards the boundary as it pinches towards the front 
of the plot. These issues in themselves are not unacceptable. A balcony has been introduced at 
first floor level, but given its position well away from the shared boundary and more than 40m from 
the rear of Pynest House to the north-west it is not considered that this will result in significantly 
greater overlooking than currently occurs. 
 
Other matters 
In August last year an application at number 8 Forest Close, for a similar scale of development 
(EPF/1055/08) was allowed by Members against Officer Recommendation due to the individual 
merits of the case. Members considered that the alterations to surrounding properties in the cul-
de-sac were sufficient to justify the proposals in this instance due to minimal harm that would 
occur in the location. The proposed extensions to number 8 would only be visible from within 
Forest Close and the playground area behind the site, further, the development would be visible 
only within the constraints of the existing built up area. The applicant is keen that the particulars of 
this neighbouring decision are noted when considering the current application. Officers would note 
that while the neighbouring developments do form a material consideration, the application plot, 
(unlike no. 8) backs on to open countryside, and each application must be considered on its own 
merits in accordance with the adopted policies of the Local Plan and Alterations. 

 
Conclusion: 
 
The proposed development is significantly greater than the 50sqm permissible under policy 
GB14A. The proposals offer no justification for this departure from policy, and present an increase 
in volume on the recently refused scheme EPF/0374/08 and are identical to a scheme refused 
under delegated powers in January of this year.  Since then there have not been any changes to 

Page 27



policy or to material considerations that would justify a different recommendation, as such Officer’s 
opinion remains unchanged from earlier this year, and refusal is recommended.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 28



 
 
123 

 
 

 
 
  

 

 
 

58.8m

59.7m

61.3m

58.8m

Pynest House

6

1

1

10

6

Stables

16

Old Vine Yard

11

Collects

Pond

High Beach

Playground

El Sub Sta

LB

B
EEC

H
 H

ILL G
A

R
D

EN
S FOREST CLOSE

LA
NE

PY
NES

T 
GREE

N

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee West 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

2 

Application Number: EPF/0555/09 

Site Name: 6 Forest Close, Waltham Abbey 
EN9 3QR 

Scale of Plot: 1/2500

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



Report to Area Plans Sub-Committee 
South, East and West 
 
Date of meeting: West – 20 May 2009 
                              
 
Subject:   Probity in Planning – Appeal Decisions, October 2008 to March 2009. 
  
Officer contact for further information:  Nigel Richardson  (01992 – 564018). 
Democratic Services Officer:    
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Planning Appeal Decisions be noted. 
 
 
Report Detail: 
 
Background 
 
1.  (Director of Planning & Economic Development) In compliance with the 
recommendation of the District Auditor, this report advises the decision-making 
committees of the results of all successful appeals, particularly those refused by 
committee contrary to officer recommendation.  The purpose is to inform the committee 
of the consequences of their decisions in this respect and, in cases where the refusal is 
found to be unsupportable on planning grounds, an award of costs may be made against 
the Council. 
 
2. To set the context, a Best Value Performance Indicator was for district councils to 
aim to have less than 40% of their decisions overturned on appeal.   The latest figure for 
the national average for District Councils is 30.9%.  That BVPI was scrapped but 
replaced by one which records planning appeals only (not advertisement, listed 
buildings, enforcements, telecommunications or tree related appeals).  That too has 
been dropped as a National Indicator but the Council has created a Local Performance 
Indicator with a target of 25% of allowed decisions.   In recent years the Council had 
been more successful than the national average with only 18% in 2003/04, 29% in 
2004/05, 22% in 2005/06, 30% in 2006/07 and 29% in 2007/08. 
 
Performance 
 
3. Over the six-month period between October 2008 and March 2009, the Council 
received 75 decisions on appeals – 71 planning and related appeals and 4 enforcement 
appeals.  Of the 71 planning and related appeals, 35 were allowed (49.2%) but none of 
the 4 enforcement appeals – a combined total of 46.6% of the Council’s decisions being 
overturned during this period. 
 
4. For the year 2008/09 as a whole: a total of 153 decisions were received – 146 
planning appeals and 7 enforcement appeals.   Of the 146 planning appeals 59 were 
allowed and 2 of the 7 enforcement appeals – a total of 39.8% of the Council’s decisions 
being overturned. 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 31



5. For LPI 45, which only considers appeals against the refusal of planning 
permission (so does not include advertisement, listed building, enforcement, CLD’s, 
telecommunications or tree-related appeals, nor appeals against conditions), the 6-
month performance figure is 50.7% allowed.   For the full year the figure is 40.3%. 
 
Planning Appeals 
 
6. The proportion of appeals that arose from decisions of the committees to refuse 
contrary to the recommendation of officers during the 6-month period was 24% - almost 
1 in 4 appeals derived from committee decisions to refuse contrary to recommendation 
and of the 17 decisions that this percentage represents, the Council was successful in 
sustaining its objection in only 2 of them. The remaining 15 (88%) were lost: 
 

EPF/0820/08 – Increased roof height of front apartment block at 1, Albert Road, 
Buckhurst Hill (Area Plans South) 
EPF/0688/08 – Extensions and alterations at Belmont Lodge, Fencepiece Road, 
Chigwell (Area Plans South) 
EPF/2279/07 – Single storey side and rear extension at 27 Hycliffe Gardens, 
Chigwell (Area Plans South) 
EPF/0168/08 – Block of 8 one-bedroomed flats at 89, High Road, Loughton (Area 
Plans South) 
EPF/2146/07 – Alterations and change of use to restaurant at Units 1 & 2, 258, High 
Road, Loughton (Area Plans South) 
EPF/0178/08 – Elevational changes and decking at Bar 195, High Road, Epping 
(Area Plans East) 
EPF/1167/08 – Replacement dwelling and development of 4 new dwellings at rear at 
11, Sunnyside Road, Epping (Area Plans East) 
EPF/1300/08 – Detached dwelling on land at 24, Bower Vale, Epping (Area Plans 
East) 
EPF/0027/08 – Separation of the barn to be used as a separate dwelling at Maltings 
Barn, Matching Green (Area Plans East) 
EPF/0313/08 – Detached garage with space for biomass boiler at The Rosaries, 
Harlow Common, Hastingwood (Area Plans East) 
EPF/2188/07 – Conversion of outbuilding to separate dwelling at 162-164, High 
Street, Ongar (Area Plans East) 
EPF/2189/07 – Balcony to rear flat roof and erection of entrance gates at 162-164, 
High Street, Ongar (Area Plans East) 
EPF/0655/08 – Two storey side extension and detached garage at 64, Morgan 
Crescent, Theydon Bois (Area Plans East) (This appeal was part allowed with the 
side extension being granted and the garage being refused.) 
EPF/2198/07 – Two storey side and rear extension and loft conversion at 7, Green 
View, The Green, Theydon Bois (Area Plans East) 
EPF/0365/07 – Use as lorry park at Skillet Hill Farm, Honey Lane, Waltham Abbey 
(Area Plans West) 
 

7. The 2 committee refusals that were sustained were: 
 

EPF/0354/08 – Erection of 13 flats with underground parking at 51, Epping New 
Road, Buckhurst Hill (Area Plans South) 
EPF/1517/08 – Erection of replacement dwelling at The Old Rectory, Mount Road, 
Theydon Mount (Area Plans East). 

 
8. Therefore, the committees are urged to continue to heed the advice that if they 
are considering setting aside the officer’s recommendation it should only be in cases 

Page 32



where members are certain they are acting in the wider public interest and where the 
committee officer can give a good indication of some success at defending the decision.     
 
9. It will be noted that 5 of the cases allowed directly involved the erection of new 
dwellings and 2 others indirectly and it is understood that the Inspectorate have been 
charged to allow appeals for new dwellings whenever possible in order to assist in 
meeting housing need.   Refusals based upon density factors or overdevelopment are 
therefore unlikely to succeed unless real harm to the surroundings or adjacent properties 
can be shown, or poor design can be identified.  It would seem that only the very worst 
are being dismissed at appeal. 
 
10. However, this period also saw an unusually high number of officer decisions 
taken under delegated powers overturned at appeal.   A total of 19 out of 53 cases were 
allowed (36%).   Whilst 3 of these involved the creation of new dwellings, the majority – 
13 – were householder applications for extensions and alterations, as indeed were 5 of 
the allowed appeals resulting from committee decisions.    This may indicate that the 
Council may be over-concerned with householder proposals at a time when the 
Government has increased permitted development rights so that more alterations can be 
carried out without the need to even apply for permission.   It may also indicate that the 
Council is too willing to concede to third party objections rather than look objectively at 
the planning merits of such proposals as a Planning Inspector is more able to do. 
 
11. However, it would not be wise to draw too many firm conclusions from one 6-
month set of results.   

  
Costs 

 
12. During this period, there were no awards of costs made for or against the Council. 
 
New Appeal Procedures 
 
13.  New appeal procedures were introduced from 6 April 2009.    These concern two 
main issues: 
      (a)  for householder applications made after 6 April 2009, that is applications for 

extensions or alterations to single dwellings or works within the curtilage of a 
single dwelling, applicants will only have 12 weeks (instead of 6 months) from the 
decision in which to appeal.   Once an appeal has been received, the Council 
has to provide the Inspectorate with the officer’s report under delegated powers 
or to committee, minutes of the committee meeting, a copy of the reasons for 
refusal and notification of the relevant policies.  The Council is not able to make 
any further statement.    Objectors will also not be able to make further comment 
but copies of letters of objection received at the application stage will be passed 
on the Inspectorate as at present; and 

      (b)  appellants (and the Council) will in future be able to make an application for 
costs for appeals dealt with by written representations, which is, by far, the most 
common method of considering an appeal.  Until now costs have only been 
possible to claim for Hearings and Inquiries.  The Council has been protected 
from accusations that it has acted unreasonably in the majority of cases because 
the appeals have been dealt with by written representations.  That will no longer 
be the case and so there is added responsibility upon all decision-makers, 
whether the committee or officers, to act responsibly and make decisions on 
planning merits alone. 

Page 33



 
 
Conclusions 
 
14. The Council’s performance for this 6-month period has been the worst for many 
years.   There has been continuing support for Green Belt policies and the support for 
the Council’s decisions to take enforcement action is particularly encouraging but overall 
the results have been poor.    
 
15.   A full list of decisions over this six month period appears below. 
 
 
Appeal Decisions April to September 2007 
 
Planning Appeals Allowed: 
 
Buckhurst Hill 

1. EPF/0114/08 – ground and first floor extensions at 24, Russell Road 
2. EPF/0820/08 – variation to roof height of front apartment block at 1, Albert Road 
3. EPF/1986/07 – loft conversion at 5, Birch Close 

Chigwell 
4. EPF/0688/08 – extension and alterations at Belmont Lodge, 392, Fencepiece 

Road 
5. EPF/2279/07 – single storey rear and side extension at 27, Hycliffe Gardens 

Epping 
6. EPF/0030/08 – single storey rear extension at Eppingdene, Ivy Chimneys 
7. EPF/0178/08 – elevational changes, rendering and construction of patio at Bar 

195, High Street 
8. EPF/1167/08 – replacement dwelling and 4 dwellings at rear at 11, Sunnyside 

Road 
9. EPF/1300/08 – two bedroomed detached house at 24, Bower Vale 

Loughton 
10. EPF/0168/08 – erection of block of 8 flats at 89, High Road 
11. EPF/0260/08 – basement excavation and remodelling of upper level at 25, Albion 

Hill 
12. EPF/0318/08 – first floor rear and side extension at 67, Roundmead Avenue 
13. EPF/1409/08 – erection of detached house at land rear of 33-35, Spring Grove 
14. EPF/2146/07 – use of office to rear of unit 1 as restaurant extension, new shop 

front to unit 2 and installation of air-conditioning at units 1 and 2, 258, High Road 
15. EPF/2395/07 – loft conversion at 60, Sedley Rise 
16. EPF/2399/07 – new roof with rooms in roof and porch and bay windows at 88, 

The Lindens (only the porch and bay windows were allowed in line with Council’s 
objection) 

17. EPF/0214/08 – telecommunications installation with 12m high mast on land adj 
Oakview School, Borders Lane 

Matching 
18. EPF/0027/08 – separation of barn as separate dwelling at Malting Barn, 

Matching Green 
Nazeing 

19. EPF/0175/08 – garage conversion and erection of new garage at 32a, Pecks Hill 
20. EPF/0899/07 – use of mushroom sheds for B1 and B8 uses at Mushroom Farm, 

Laundry Lane 
21. EPF/1210/08 – erection of bungalow and garage at land rear of 63/65, North 

Street 
North Weald 

Page 34



22. EPF/0313/08 – double garage and space for biomass boiler at The Rosaries, 
Harlow Common 

23. EPF/0680/08 – two storey side and rear extension, single storey rear extension 
and front porch at 23, High Road 

24. EPF/2388/07 – Use as pre-school nursery at 3, Willow Place 
Ongar 

25. EPF/2188/07 – conversion of outbuilding to dwelling at 162-164, High Street 
26. EPF/2189/07 – balcony at rear and erection of entrance gates at 162-164, High 

Street 
Roydon 

27. EPF/2414/07 – rear conservatory at 22, Hansells Mead 
Sheering 

28. EPF/0143/08 – loft conversion at 135, Sheering Road 
Stanford Rivers 

29. EPF/0753/08 – rear conservatory at Mitchell Hall, Toot Hill Road 
Theydon Bois 

30. EPF/0655/08 – two storey side extension and detached garage at 64 Morgan 
Crescent (only the two storey side extension was allowed)  

31. EPF/1649/08 – first floor side and rear extensions at 12, The Weind 
32. EPF/2198/07 – two storey side and rear extension and loft conversion at 7, 

Green View, The Green 
Waltham Abbey 

33. EPF/0365/07 – use as lorry park, use of house for drivers’ facilities and alteration 
to access at Skillet Hill Farm, Honey Lane 

34. EPF/1105/08 – new entrance gates at Parima, Sewardstone Road 
35. EPF/2408/07 – erection of agricultural dwelling at Hannah Nursery, Sewardstone 

Road 
 
Planning Appeals Dismissed 
 
Buckhurst Hill 

36. EPF/0224/08 – first floor side extension at 101, Rous Road 
37. EPF/0354/08 – erection of 13 flats with underground parking at 51, Epping New 

Road 
38. EPF/2080/07 – erection of 14 flats with underground parking at 51, Epping New 

Road 
39. EPF/0391/08 – erection of 10 flats at 2, Westbury Road 
40. EPF/0435/08 – retention of rear dormer window at 13 Beatrice Court, Albert 

Road 
41. EPF/2350/07 – new dwelling in rear garden of 15, Albert Terrace 
42. EPF/1134/08 – internally illuminated fascia sign at 179, Queens Road 

Chigwell 
43. EPF/0471/08 – new chalet bungalow at land rear of 4, Doves Cottages, Gravel 

Lane 
44. EPF/1011/08 – two storey side extension at 2, Pudding Lane 
45. EPF/2714/07 – two storey side extension at 2, Pudding Lane 
46. EPF/1385/08 – two storey and single storey rear and side extension, loft 

conversion and alterations at 34, Oak Lodge Avenue 
47. EPF/2025/08 – loft conversion and two storey front extension at 37, Meadow 

Way 
48. EPF/2373/07 – hip to gable roof extension, rear balcony, rear dormers, front 

dormers and new front windows at 39, Stradbroke Drive 
49. EPF/2620/07 – porch extension at 85, Manor Road 

Epping 

Page 35



50. EPF/0516/08 – erection of replacement dwelling with development of 5 dwellings 
at the rear at 11, Sunnyside Road 

51. EPF/1292/08 – new dwelling at first floor above car ports and ground floor 
extensions at Creeds Farm, Bury Lane 

Epping Upland 
52. EPF/2364/07 – rear extension, new front dormer and alterations at Plashetts, 

Pump Lane, Epping Green 
Loughton 

53. EPF/2340/07 – loft conversion at 75, Roundmead Avenue 
54. EPF/2702/07 – detached house at land adjoining 35, Albion Hill 
55. EPF/0470/08 – details of detached dwelling at Beechlands, 42, Alderton Hill 

Nazeing 
56. EPF/0613/08 – replacement of existing dwelling with two maisonettes at Wilbank, 

Nursery Road 
57. EPF/1691/07 – erection of replacement bungalow at Dene, Nursery Road 

North Weald 
58. EPF/0078/08 – two storey side extension and front porch at 5, Blacksmiths 

Cottages, Hastingwood Road, Hastingwood 
Roydon 

59. EPF/0762/08 – use of land for storage of 3 vehicles in connection with vehicle 
recovery business at Lowershott Nursery, Sedge Green 

60. EPF/0995/08 – single storey side extension and roof extension at Cranalyn, Barn 
Hill 

Sheering 
61. EPF/0160/08 – retention of front wall at 75, Sheering Lower Road 

Stapleford Abbotts 
62. EPF/2113/07 – replacement dwelling at The Haven, Stapleford Road 

Theydon Bois 
63. EPF/0119/08 – replacement of hutment with eco house at St Leonard, Theydon 

Park Road 
64. EPF/1684/07 – outline application for erection of two, 4-bedroomed house at land 

rear of Rozel and Branscombe, Loughton Lane and 17, Avenue Road 
Theydon Mount 

65. EPF/1517/08 - demolition of existing and erection of replacement house with 
garage block at The Old Rectory, Mount Road 

Waltham Abbey 
66. EPF/0548/08 – two storey side extension at 12, Mott Street, High Beach 
67. EPF/0676/08 – replacement agricultural building at Felicia Nursery, Avey Lane 
68. EPF/0735/08 – single storey rear and side extension, front porch and roof 

conversion at Oakview, 2, Claverhambury Road 
69. EPF/2261/07 – use of site for storage and parking and erection of steel palisade 

fence at land on n.e. side of Pick Hill 
70. EPF/0878/08 LB – listed building application for refurbishment works to windows 

and internal works at 18, Sun Street 
71. EPF/2025/07 TEL – telecommunications installation of 12m high monopole and 

ancillary works at Shell Service Station, Wake Arms Roundabout 
 
Enforcement Appeals Dismissed 
 

1. Use of land as a works depot at Harlow Park Nursery, London Road, 
Hastingwood 

2. Siting and use of a residential caravan at Barkers Farm, Mount End, Theydon 
Mount 

3. Erection of a dwellinghouse at Maynards Farm, Cobbins End Road, Upshire 

Page 36



4. Use as B1, B2 and B8 and as depots at Mushroom Farm, Laundry Lane, 
Nazeing 

 

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees
	5 Minutes
	7 Development Control
	Schedule for Plans West - 20 May 09

	8 Probity in Planning â•ﬁ Appeal Decisions, October 2008 to March 2009

